
St. Croix Preparatory Academy
Board Meeting Agenda

June 29, 2021

1. Call to Order
2. Open Forum
3. Board Calendar
4. Consent Agenda (Board Minutes, Executive Director Report, Annual 

Designations, IOWA, MSHSL Resolution)
A. Board Minutes
B. Executive Director Report

5. Agenda
A. Read Well By 3rd Grade Report -- Approval
B. 2021-2022 e-Learning Days - approval of three (3) days
C. 2021-2022 Family Handbook Approval
D. Approve Clifton Larson Allen as auditor for 2021-2022 school 

year
E. Potential Budget Amendment Due to Federal Funding Relief
F. Friends of Education Networking Event
G. Board Officer Elections Next Month

6. Adjourn Meeting

    

2
5

17

22
33
34
68

69

1



ANNUAL BOARD CALENDAR
2021-2022

July Responsible Notes/Status

Public Hearing on Student Fees
Approval of 2021-2022 Student Fees
PPP Loan Status/Update
Vote on Board Officers – Chair, Vice Chair, 
Secretary/Board Clerk, Treasurer

August Responsible Notes/Status

Retreat Planning 
Status of School Opening

September Responsible Notes/Status

Annual Report Approval for 2020-2021 J. Gutierrez
Seat New Board Members
Board Members Sign Conflict of Interest Forms
Review of MCA Test Scores J. Gutierrez
Q Comp Site Goals

October Responsible Notes/Status

File Charter Assurances with Friends J. Gutierrez
Board Retreat
Review Strategic Plan

November Responsible Notes/Status

Financial Statement Review
Audit Acceptance

2



World’s Best Workforce Approval
MDE Assurance of Compliance

December Responsible Notes/Status

January Responsible Notes/Status

Board Election Timeframe Discussion
Approve School Calendar

February Responsible Notes/Status

Financial Statement Review
Board Election Timeframe Discussion
Approve School Calendar

March Responsible Notes/Status

Approve Open Enrollment Period for Next Year
Approve Board Calendar for Next Year 

● Meetings
● Election
● Retreat

April Responsible Notes/Status

Annual Budget Introduction
Compensation Plan Introduction
Succession Planning Update

May Responsible Notes/Status

Q Comp Report Presentation/Approval
Financial Statement Review
Compensation Plan Approval
Board Election Update
Approve Annual Budget 3



Approve Employee Handbook
Introduction of Family Handbook

June Responsible Notes/Status

Public Hearing on Fees - 2022
New Board Member Training
Read Well by Third Grade Approval
Approval of Family Handbook
Annual Finance Designations for Next Year

● Identified Official with Authority
● Official Newspaper
● Designation of Depository
● Account Signatories
● Collateralize Funds in Excess of FDIC 

Insurance
● Delegation of Authority to Make Electronic 

Funds Transfers

4



5



6



Education Identity and Access Management Board Resolution
The Minnesota Department of Education (MDE), Professional Educator Licensing Standards Board (PELSB), and 
Office of Higher Education (OHE) require annual designation of an Identified Official with Authority (IOwA) for 
each local educational agency that uses the Education Identity Access Management (EDIAM) system. The IOwA 
is responsible for authorizing, reviewing, and recertifying user access for their local educational agency in 
accordance with the State of Minnesota Enterprise Identity and Access Management Standard, which states that 
all user access rights to Minnesota state systems must be reviewed and recertified at least annually. The IOwA 
will authorize user access to State of Minnesota Education secure systems in accordance with the user’s 
assigned job duties, and will revoke that user’s access when it is no longer needed to perform their job duties. 

Your school board or equivalent governing board must designate an IOwA to authorize user access to State of 
Minnesota Education secure websites for your organization.  This EDIAM board resolution must be completed 
and submitted to the Minnesota Department of Education annually, as well as any time there is a change in the 
assignment of the Identified Official with Authority.

It is strongly recommended that only one person at the local educational agency or organization (typically the 
superintendent or director) is designated as the IOwA. If the local educational agency or organization assigns 
this role to more than one person, identify each designated person in this board resolution.

NOTE: Please complete the following board resolution language using your organization’s letterhead.

Designation of the Identified Official with Authority for Education Identity Access Management

Organization Name: __________________________________________________________________

6-Digit or 9-Digit Organization Number (e.g., 1234-01 or 1234-01-000): _________________________

The Director recommends the Board authorize the below named individual(s) to act as the Identified Official 
with Authority (IOwA) for this organization:

Print Name: ____________________________________________________________________

Title: ____________________________________________________________________

Board Member Signature:

Name: _________________________________________________  

Date: _______________________

Once the EDIAM Board Resolution is completed, scan and send it to:  useraccess.mde@state.mn.us

7

mailto:useraccess.mde@state.mn.us


School Board Minutes May 18, 2021

Members Present:  C. Brown, K. Denzer, N. Donnay, J. Gottschalk, R. Hajlo, D. Keyes

Members Absent: A. Melendres, S. Mueller

Board Advisors Present:  J. Gutierrez, K. Gutierrez

Call to Order
R. Hajlo called the board meeting to order at 6:02 pm.

Open Forum
There were no requests to speak at the Open Forum.

Consent Agenda - J. Gutierrez
The Consent Agenda has the minutes from the April 13 board meeting, the Executive Director’s report and the 
2021-2022 Employee Handbook. The only changes to the handbook is updating the year and changing the holiday 
dates to align with the approved FY22 the school calendar. 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda:  D. Keyes
Second:  N. Donnay
Approved:  All

Board Election Update – N. Donnay
Electronic ballots can be submitted until midnight on Tuesday, May 18.  There were some minor email fixes 
completed on Monday. Election results will come out at midnight and the results will be sent to the board 
candidates followed by a mass email communication to the school community. 

2020-2021 QComp – Deanna Thompson
4 Core Components:

1. Career Advancement
2. Job-embedded Professional Development
3. Teacher Evaluation
4. Performance Pay and Alternative Salary Schedule

Divisions did not make their site goals so Q Comp funds will roll over into FY21.

Motion to approve the 2020-2021 Q Comp Goals as presented:  K. Denzer
Second:  N. Donnay
Approved:  All

2021-2022 Board Meeting Dates
Dates as presented; board meeting dates typically the third Tuesday of the month except in June.

Motion to approve the 2021-2022 board meeting dates:  J. Gottschalk
Second:  K. Denzer
Approved:  All

8



2

2021-2022 Benefit Carrier Approval – K. Gutierrez
To comply with MN State Statute, SCPA must solicit closed bids for group health insurance contracts.   This year 
SCPA received bids from HealthPartners, PreferredOne, PEIP and United Health Care. HealthPartners offered a 10% 
increase in premiums, with a net 9% increase due to the 1% decrease in the broker commission. PreferredOne 
came in with a decrease of .69% for a total of 1.69% savings with the 1% decrease in broker commission factored 
in,   and PEIP was a 15.75-63% increase over current premiums. UHC was a .82% increase in premiums but their 
network is not comparable to the HealthPartners Achieve in size. In addition, members must live in the 11-county 
area and SCPA has  15-20% of our employees who live outside of the network area. 

Dental benefits – renew with HealthPartners with no increase in premiums. 

Group term life insurance – renew with Principal with an increase of $0.005 per $1000 of coverage which is a 
6.25% increase. 

Voluntary life insurance – no premium change.

Long-term disability – renew with Principal with an increase of $0.01 per $100 of payroll which is a 3.2% increase.

Vision coverage – renew with VSP with an 11% decrease for the base plan and 9% for the premium plan.

Administration’s recommendation to the board is as follows:  switch to PreferredOne for group health insurance, 
remain with HealthPartners for dental, remain with Principal for group term life, voluntary life, and long-term 
disability, and remain with VSP for vision.

Motion to engage the following carriers for FY22 Benefits as recommended by the administration: Health: 
PreferredOne, Dental: HealthPartners, Group Term Life, Voluntary Life and Long Term Disability: Principal, 
Vision: VSP:  K. Denzer
Second:  J. Gottschalk
Approved:  All

2021-2022 Compensation Plan Approval – K. Gutierrez
The following edits were presented to the board:

 Year updated to 2021-2022.
 Teacher overload rates increased 2% for cost of living.
 Non-instructional staff rates increased between 2-3%.
 QComp Incentive Schedule will be updated once MCA scores are released and goals are established.
 Staff Stipend Schedule and Hourly Rates, Non-Licensed Instructional Staff Salary Schedule and Substitute 

and Seasonal Employee Compensation Rates have been updated to align with the budget.

The 2021-2022 Compensation Plan aligns with the budget.  

Motion to approve the 2021-2022 Compensation Plan as presented:  J. Gottschalk
Second:  K. Denzer
Approved:  All

2020-2021 Amended Budget Approval – K. Gutierrez
Comparing YTD Actuals as of March 31, 2021 to Reforecasted Budget:

9



3

 Total revenues increased by $397K largely due to $1.8M in Covid-19 aid offset by local revenue decrease 
of $1.2M and state revenue decrease of $371K. 

 Total expenditures decreased by $798K attributed to operational efficiencies including reduction in 
utilities of $58K, repairs and maintenance of $43K, eliminated field trips of $40K, reduction in processing 
fees of $22K and reduction in fundraising expenses.

 Net income increase of $1.19M primarily due to the $1.4M PPL loan.
 Debt service coverage ratio expected to be 1.85 vs. 1.75; bond covenant requires 1.10 minimum.
 Fund balance reserve of 41% vs. 33%; fund balance policy requires more than 20%.
 Days cash on hand is 129 days vs. 104 days; target is more than 60 days.

Motion to revise the 2020-2021 Budget:
General Fund Revenues of $15,285,111 and General Fund Expenditures of $13,994,685.
Fund 02 Food Service Fund Revenues of $299,178 and Food Service Fund Expenditures of $330,258.
Fund 04 Community Servive Fund Revenues of $27,000 and Community Service Expenditures of $31,000:  
K. Denzer
Second:  D. Keyes
Approved:  All

2021-2022 Budget Approval – K. Gutierrez
The following are the only edits from the original budget presentation at the April 2021 board meeting:

 Schedule 8A: decrease in MS principal on special assignment salary due to retirement, increase for District 
Support Services staff position (prior year position was funded through CARES Act funding), increase 
above the 2% cost of living for Instructional Support Services/Pupil Support Services, Lower School 
decrease due to retirement of staff, increase in Other due to admin/teacher sick time buy-out due to 
additional sick time offered to staff.

 Assumptions staying the same: 1.0% increase in per pupil funding, 1180 students, 29 PSEO students, 7 
shared time students.

 Projected Annual Surplus of $77K, additional $14K from preliminary budget.
 Projected Fund Balance of $5,917,000, % of Annual Expense remains at 39% which exceeds the > 20% 

target.
 Projected Debt Service Coverage is 1.24 vs. 1.22 in preliminary budget which is over the > 1.10 target.
 Projected Days Cash on Hand remains at 128 days which is over the targeted +60 days.

Gutierrez noted the importance of future review of the 30 year building life cycle and assigning funds in the future 
to facility repair and replacement to cover the costs associated with the scheduled building maintenance.

Motion to adopt the 2021-2022 original budget:
General Fund Revenues of $14,552,260 and General Fund Expenditures of $14,490,384.
Fund 02 Food Service Fund Revenues of $502,140 and Food Service Fund Expenditures of $497,791.
Fund 04 Community Service Fund Revenues of $118,895 and Community Service Expenditures of 
$107,475:  K. Denzer
Second:  J. Gottschalk
Approved:  All

Face Covering Policy Amendment
Following MDE and MDH’s Safe Learning Plan, after June 8, 2021 face coverings on school property is optional.

Motion to approve effective June 9, 2021 masks are optional to wear on school property.  Staff and 
students must adhere to the dress code policy regarding face masks:  R. Hajlo

10



4

Second:  K. Denzer
Approved:  All

There was discussion regarding masks for summer camps and summer school.

2021-2022 Family Handbook
Review a draft of the 2021-2022 Family Handbook. Dates still need to be updated. Will be on the agenda to 
approve at the June 2021 board meeting.

Adjourn Meeting

Motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:13 pm:  J. Gottschalk
Second:  D. Keyes
Approved:  All 

Submitted by S. Peterson, St. Croix Preparatory Academy

11



12



13



14



 

 

 

 

 

  FY22 Annual Designations 

 
1. Confirm / appoint members of board of directors of Friends of St. Croix Preparatory 

Academy, the school’s building company. 
o 2-yr term: 

 Bill Blotske 
 Kristine Fisher 

 
2. MDE Designations 

o Designate MDE Identified Official with Authority (IOWA)  
 Jon Gutierrez, Executive Director 

 
3. Designation of Depositories 

o First State Bank and Trust 
950 North Highway 95 
Bayport, MN 55003 

o Platinum Bank 
7667 10th St. N 
Oakdale, MN  55128 

4. Authorized signers at banks 
o Board Chair  
o Board Treasurer  
o Executive Director:    
o Executive Director of Finance & Operations:   

 
5. Delegation of Authority to Make Electronic Funds Transfers 

o Board Chair 
o Board Treasurer 
o Executive Director  
o Executive Director of Finance & Operations 
o Controller (Contracted) 
o CFO (Contracted) 

  

15



 

2 
FY20 Annual Designations 

 
6. Granting of Administrative Authority:  Executive Director of Finance and Operations is 

granted administrative authority to execute and update all Cash Management 
Agreements with First State Bank and Trust and to further grant authority to certain 
BerganKDV employees to perform activities necessary to carry out bank account-related 
functions and electronic transfers including, but not limited to:  
o Payment of employee payroll; federal, state, and unemployment taxes (deductions 

and/or benefits); and other payroll related deductions and benefits (when 
appropriate) 

o Employee Retirement Association (PERA) for deductions and benefits. 
o Payments, including, but not limited to building lease payments, credit card 

payments, and other vendor payments (when appropriate). 
o Other payments authorized by the board of directors. 
o Monitoring, reconciliation, and management of bank transactional activity  
o Transfer of funds between the school’s bank accounts at [name school bank] Bank. 
o Investment of excess funds  
o Execution and release of pledge agreements  
o Temporary and permanent ACH Limit changes 
o Management of Positive Pay system 

 
7. Authorization to access Legal Counsel as needed granted to: 

o Board Chair 
o Executive Director  
o Executive Director of Finance and Operations 
o Director of Human Resources 
o Special Education Director  
o Division Principals 

 
8. Designation of Official Newspaper (require for posting of public notices). 

o Stillwater Gazette 
 

9. Approval of Rates of Pay (substitutes, casual workers, etc.) 
o Per FY21 Compensation Plan 
o The Executive Director of Finance and Operations has discretion to adjust these 

rates on an as-needed basis should the need occur. 
 

 
 

16



Executive Director’s Report to the Board

Date of Report:  June 2021
Report Prepared By:  Jon Gutierrez

Operational Items:
 Weekly meetings with administrative leadership and individual leadership team members – A. 

Sachariason, W. Renner, J. Karetov, K. Gutierrez, P. Rosell, B. Blotske, R. Dippel, C. Olson; and 
weekly administrative leadership meeting.  

 Graduation Planning – along with other year-end events.
 Planning for 2021-2022 school year, including enrollment, lotteries, handbooks, equipment and book 

returns, summer school, staffing, facilities maintenance, Friends of Education compliance, MDE 
reporting, etc.

 Current information for the upcoming 2021-2022 school year (e.g. applications and wait list are noted 
below.

Grade 2021-22
Enrollment

2021-2022 
Waitlist

Kindergarten 90 151
1st Grade 90 92
2nd Grade 90 86
3rd Grade 90 91
4th Grade 90 68
   LS Total 450 488 

5th Grade 93 61
6th Grade 93 80
7th Grade 93 48
8th Grade 93 28
   MS Total 372 217

9th Grade 105 14
10th Grade 102 2
11th Grade 106 1
12th Grade 92 0
Super Seniors 0
   US Total 405 17

   School Total 1,216 722

Comments on Enrollment, Wait Lists, Departures:
17



 Upper School Enrollment includes 9 PSEO students and 2 Foreign Exchange students

Professional Development:  See Attachment

18



J. Gutierrez
Professional Development Plan

2020-2021

Month Category Title Description/Comments
July 2020 Code Switch Podcast – 24 

minutes
The Undocumented Americans, NPR – Conversations about Race

Code Switch Podcast – 37 
minutes

Can we talk about Whiteness, NPR – Conversations about Race

Code Switch Podcast – 21 
minutes

Being “Outdoorsy” when you are Black or Brown, NPR – 
Conversations about Race

Representation, cultural heritage, cost of 
entry, National Park Service Statistics, This 
Land is Your Land (song)

Course Hero Videos Invisible Man – Summaries and Analysis
Code Switch Podcast – 49 

minutes
The Fierce Debate Over High Standards, NPR – Conversations 
about Race

Ron Brown College Prep in DC

Code Switch Podcast – 29 
minutes

Why Now, White People, NPR – Conversations about Race White people influencing white people, Trump 
language – Covid -19

Book White Fragiity:  Why It’s so Hard for White People to Talk About 
Racism, by Robin Diangelo

Essay White Privilege:  Unpacking the Invisible Knapsack, by Peggy 
McIntosh

Video – 53 minutes Money as an Instrument of Change -- Chamath Palihapitiya, CEO 
Social Capital

Book Invisible Man, by Ralph Ellison
August 2020 Code Switch Podcast – 23 

minutes
A Decade of Watching Black People Die

Lecture – 59 minutes Invisible to Whom? Ralph Ellison, Double Consciousness, and 
African American Identity Politics, by Pellom McDaniels, Emory 
University

Lecture – 2 hours 11 minutes Ralph Ellison’s “Invisible Man”, Revisited, Reapplied, and 
Repurposed – multiple scholars at NYU-Florence.

TED Lecture – 11 minutes The Cost of Code Switching, by Chandra Arthur
Lecture – 1 hour 7 minutes CIDRAP – Osterholm Update, Reopening Schools, Part 1 Center for Infectious Disease Research and 

Policy
Lecture – 1 hour 7 minutes CIDRAP – Osterholm Update, Reopening Schools, Part 2

Conference Calls, MDE Planning 
Guides, Legal Counsel, Friends 

of Education Meetings
Covid-19 and School Opening Guidance

Podcast – 56 minutes Bret Weinstein and John McWhorter:  George Floyd Protests and 
Race in America

Video 9 minutes John McWhorter, How Anti-racism hurts Black People
Video 9 minutes John McWhorter& Cornel West on reparations

19



September 2020 Video 50 minutes Glenn Loury & John McWhorter – the Unraveling, a review of White 
Fragility and related matters

Video 66 minutes Glenn Loury & John McWhorter – A Critical Look at the 1619 Project
Podcast – 90 minutes Jeff Wright (Odyssey) - Circe
Podcast – 72 minutes Jeff Wright (Odyssey) – Odysseus in the Underworld
Podcast – 126 minutes Jeff Wright (Odyssey) – Sirens, Scylla, Charybdis and some Cows

October 2020 Podcast – 93 minutes Jeff Wright (Odyssey) -- Calypso
Podcast – 94 minutes Jeff Wright (Odyesse) --  Telemachus, Menelaus, and Helen of Troy

Book The Odyssey, by Homer (I try to read The Iliad and The Odyssey 
once a year)

Book Gilgamesh Epic
Lecture 1 – 50 minutes Dr. Joseph Hughes (Missouri State University) – The Heroic Quest
Lecture 2 – 50 minutes Dr. Joseph Hughest (Missouri State University) - Gilgamesh

Video Lecture – 22 minutes Gilgamesh Epic, Part 1 -- Tim McGee
Video Lecture – 14 minutes Gilgamesh Epic Part 2 – Tim McGee

November 2020 Video Lecture – 15 minutes Epic of Gilgamesh, Gilgamesh – Paul Joseph Krause
Video Lecture – 41 minutes Epic of Gilgamesh, Enkidu – Paul Joseph Krause

Book – Poem Inferno, Dante Alighieri
Video Lecture – 24 minutes Epic of Gilgamesh, Humbaba and the Plant of Life – Paul 

Joseph Krause
Video Lecture – 89 minutes The Epic of Gilgamesh – Andrew George
Video Lecture – 37 minutes Noah’s Flood and the Epic of Gilgamesh – Bruce Gore
Video Lecture – 50 minutes Introduction to Inferno, Tim McGee

Book The Prince – Niccolo Machiavelli
December Book I Know Why The Caged Birds Sing, by Maya Angelou

Video Lecture – 73 minutes The Biology of Humans at our Best and Worst – Robert 
Sapolsky

Book Why We Sleep, Unlocking the Power of Sleep and Dreams, 
by Matthew Walker

January Book The Time Machine, H.G Wells
Book Range: Why Generalists Triumph in a Specialized World, by 

David Epstein
Video Training – 68 minutes Covid 19 Saliva Test Training

Book Losing the Race: Self-Sabotage in Black America, by John 
McWhorter

Webinar – 60 minutes MDE – Learning Models, Planning Days, 
Podcast – 32 minutes Code Switch – From the Fringe to the Capitol

Book The Tyranny of Merit: What’s Become of the Common 
Good? - -by Michael Sandel

February Podcast – 4 hours The Rabbit Hole – 8 episodes Radicalization on the “left/right” via 
social media, youtube, explanation of 

20



algorithms, filter bubbles, issues of free 
speech, etc.

Podcast – 56 minutes Glenn Loury – John McWhorter:  Reckoning with the Capitol 
Riot

Podcast – 70 minutes Glenn Loury – John McWhorter:  Wokebusters
Podcast – 19 minutes Glenn Loury – John McWhorter: Critical Race theory’s rising 

hegomony
Podcast – 66 minutes Glenn Loury – John McWhorter:  A Critical Look at the 1619 

Project
Podcast --  6+ hours Gangster Capitalism – NRA – 9 episodes
Podcast – 5 hours David Duke’s Rise to power and prominence

March Book The 1619 Project, A Critique, by Phillip W. Magness 
(American Institute for Economic Research)

April Book Exit, Voice, and Loyalty: Responses to Decline in Firms, 
Organizations, and States, by Albert O. Hirschman, 1970.

Book The Righteous Mind, Why Good People Are Divided by 
Politics and Religion, by Jonathan Haidt

Podcast – 55 minutes Glenn Loury and Daniel Markovits – The Meritocracy Trap
Podcast – 59 minutes Glenn Loury – John McWhorter, What Happened to Civil 

Rights
May Podcasts, Videos, Articles Numerous reading and review of various resources on 

Critical Race Theory

21



St. Croix Preparatory Academy 
Reading Well by Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

Updated June, 2020 
Page 1 of 11 

 

	

St. Croix Preparatory Academy 

Reading Well by the End of Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Literacy Plan Developers 
Joann Karetov, Lower School Principal 
Emily Croaston, Reading Specialist 
 
Reviewed by the SCPA Lower School Faculty:  June 7, 2021 
Presented to the School Board:  June 22, 2021 
Approved by the School Board: TBD 
 
 
 

 

 

 22



St. Croix Preparatory Academy 
Reading Well by Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

Updated June, 2020 
Page 2 of 11 

 
Overview of St. Croix Preparatory Academy Local Literacy Plan 

MN Statute 120B.12 states that a school district must adopt a local literacy plan to have every 
child reading at or above grade level no later than the end of grade 3. This legislation is 
commonly referred to as “Reading Well by Third Grade”. The literacy plan “must include a 
process to assess students’ level of reading proficiency, notify and involve parents, intervene 
with students who are not reading at or above grade level, and identify and meet staff 
development needs.” 

The purpose of this document is to outline how St. Croix Preparatory Academy plans to 
address each of these requirements for our students in kindergarten through third grade. 

Belief Statement from Minnesota Department of Education 

Reading well by third grade is one of many developmental milestones in a child’s educational 
experience. Literacy development starts at an early age and is the basis for all academic 
success. Reading well by grade three ensures that a student has a solid foundation of literacy 
skills to continue to expand their understanding of what they read, make meaning, and transfer 
that learning across all subject areas. Instruction that provides the basis for all students to read 
well by third grade and beyond will help close the achievement gap and ensure that all 
students are ready for the demands of college and the workplace. From cradle to career, a 
sustained effort to create quality literacy environments in all of our schools and programs from 
birth through grade 12 promotes academic success.  – Minnesota Department of Education 

St. Croix Preparatory Academy Local Literacy Plan Goals 

1. All students who are not reading at grade level will be supported in order to close the 
achievement gap and attain grade level reading benchmarks.  
 

2. All students who are exceeding reading grade level benchmarks will be supported and 
challenged in order to make projected growth. 
 

3. All stakeholders will be informed about the instructional efforts to ensure that all our 
students will be reading well by 3rd grade.  

How Will SCPA Know If Our Students are Reading Well by Third Grade? 

Reading proficiency will be defined as students who score at or above established SCPA 
benchmarks and who perform at grade level in the classroom.   Reading proficiency will be 
ensured for ALL students in Kindergarten through grade 3 by multiple measures of assessment, 
data driven decision-making, and a Response to Intervention (RTI) approach to support and 
improve literacy skills.   Students who are not reading at grade level will receive research-
based interventions, and their progress will be monitored until proficiency is attained.   
Interventions will supplement and supplant core reading instruction.   

Core curriculum is aligned to the Minnesota English Language Arts Standards.   On a yearly 
basis, the SCPA core curriculum is aligned vertically and horizontally.  

 23



St. Croix Preparatory Academy 
Reading Well by Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

Updated June, 2020 
Page 3 of 11 

 
What Kind of Assessments will be Used and When? 

Elementary students at St. Croix Preparatory Academy are assessed in their reading skills 
utilizing the Strategic Teaching and Evaluation of Progress (STEP) reading assessment. STEP 
is an assessment tool created by the University of Chicago Urban Education Institute.  The 
assessment evaluates key elements of literacy development for students from kindergarten 
through third grade including phonemic awareness, letter/word knowledge, reading accuracy 
and use of reading strategies, fluency and reading rate, as well as literal and inferential 
comprehension.   
 
The levels of the STEP reading assessment start at the Pre-Reading STEP and go up to STEP 
12. It is the goal that all students will achieve STEP 12 by the end of third grade.  The table 
below shows the quarterly STEP level benchmarks. 
    

 End of Qtr. 1 End of Qtr. 2 End of Qtr. 3 End of Qtr. 4 
 

 STEP  STEP STEP STEP 
K Pre-Reading 1 2 3 

1 3 4 5 6 
2 6 7 8 9 
3 9 10 11 12 

 
Students are assessed using STEP at least four times per year.  Students read a leveled book 
with increasing difficulty at each STEP level.  The teacher takes notes of reading behaviors and 
records the student’s reading accuracy and fluency.  After reading the book, the test 
administrator has a comprehension conversation with the child about the book.  There are 
additional components of the STEP assessment that target specific reading skills aligned with 
the leveled texts. The table below summarizes the scores needed for students to meet grade 
level benchmarks in each component of the quarterly STEP assessments.  

 
 24



St. Croix Preparatory Academy 
Reading Well by Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

Updated June, 2020 
Page 4 of 11 

 
SCPA students are assessed at the end of each quarter.  This information is used to identify 
students who need extra help in reaching grade level expectations. Students are assessed 
diagnostically in order to match their needs with instructional practices. Additionally, students 
who are receiving extra help, or targeted assistance, are progress-monitored regularly. 
Progress monitoring data is used to evaluate the effectiveness of instruction and to adjust 
instruction as needed to maximize growth towards grade level expectations. 

Our primary assessment is STEP, but students are also considered for targeted services if they 
fall below the target score on any of the screening assessments. These students will be 
considered for small-group Tier II interventions provided by an Educational Assistant and/or 
the Reading Specialist.   Data used to determine whether they receive services includes, but is 
not limited to the STEP assessment, MCA (grade 3), Imagine It! benchmarks, fluency 
benchmarks, RIGGS phonogram and orthography tests, and classroom observational data. 
Students are considered meeting grade level expectations if they maintain at or above grade 
level benchmarks on assessments. Students who qualify for special education services will 
receive their targeted interventions through their IEPs. 

SCPA will assess all students who were previously below benchmark each September, within 
the first 3 weeks of school.  New students to SCPA will be assessed before or during their first 
week of school. 

If a student is below benchmarks, the teacher brings the information to the Child Study team 
meetings.  At that time, teachers discuss prior interventions, and the teacher and team run 
through a series of indicators to review if the child may need vision, hearing, and/or dyslexia 
screenings, has a learning disability and/or medical concerns, etc.  The team introduces 
additional interventions and sets a date to review the use of the new interventions.  If upon 
return to the Child Study team meeting it is determined that the interventions are not 
supporting the student in making progress, additional interventions are suggested and another 
review date is set, or a parent meeting is scheduled.   

How Will Parents Be Informed That Their Child is not Reading Proficiently? 

Communication with families is an ongoing process. It starts with Back to School/Open House 
and continues throughout the year through two (2) teacher conferences and ongoing phone 
calls and meetings. Each year in elementary school, parents are provided information that 
shows the reading growth of their child.   

The parents of students not reading proficiently will also be sent a formal notification and will 
explain entrance/exit criteria and support services. Parents will receive an additional progress 
report from the reading specialist at the end of each quarter that the student receives 
additional services.  On the progress report, student data and supplemental guides/resources 
for parents will be attached. 

If the Child Study team has discussed a student, and interventions have not supported the 
targeted growth, parents are invited to meet and discuss their child’s progress, indicators of 
potential concerns (i.e. vision/hearing/dyslexia screening results, focusing issues, etc.), and 
any diagnoses the parents may provide that they have received by a medical doctor.  SCPA 
will screen for dyslexia and report to parents a comprehensive checklist for any student who 
is showing reading deficiencies and is not meeting local benchmarks.  Parents may choose to 
further seek dyslexia diagnosis with their child’s physician.  SCPA does not include screening 

25



St. Croix Preparatory Academy 
Reading Well by Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

Updated June, 2020 
Page 5 of 11 

 
for convergence insufficiency disorder as part of its vision screening program.  Parents with 
concerns about the condition should see their licensed eye care specialist for assessment and 
treatment.  Parents have the option to have their student assessed at the school for additional 
special education support services. 

Progress in reading grades and performance can be viewed electronically in the student 
information software.  Grades are reported four times per year and indicate individual student 
performance and whether students are reading at grade level.   

During fall and spring conferences and ongoing communication with parents, SCPA will 
provide parent information in regard to utilizing literacy strategies to accelerate their child’s 
literacy development in areas where a skill deficit has been identified.  Additionally, parents 
receive information at least three (3) times per year regarding ways they may support their 
child at home in attaining the next reading level. 

Each summer, a letter will be sent to families of children in grades K-3 who are not meeting 
grade level expectations / benchmarks.   The letter will include results from the most recent 
assessment window and parent resources for continued literacy support. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 26



St. Croix Preparatory Academy 
Reading Well by Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

Updated June, 2020 
Page 6 of 11 

 
Sample Parent Notification Letter 

Date 
 
Dear family of ________ (grade ___), 
 
Literacy development starts at an early age and is the basis for all academic success.  
Reading is a critical skill upon which all other learning is built. At SCPA we use multiple 
assessments: STEP, Imagine It! (grades K-3), MCA (Minnesota Comprehensive Assessment, 
grade 3) to track each student’s reading development.  
 
You are receiving this letter to let you know that your child did not meet the end of year 
reading benchmark, as indicated by their STEP (Strategic Teaching and Evaluation of 
Progress) and/or MCA test. 
 

 
Grade: 

MN and/or 
SCPA 

Benchmark:  

Present 
Level: 

Did Not Achieve: 
 

STEP Level (K-3)    

Fluency Score  
(K-3) 

   

MCA Preliminary 
Score (3) 

   

 
During the school year, your child has received some or all of the following support: small 
group instruction with the Reading Specialist, small group instruction with the classroom 
Educational Assistant, and/or individualized reading instruction by the classroom teacher. 
 
Research has shown that children who practice their reading during the summer are less 
likely to lose the reading skills that they have worked hard to develop. A good summer 
routine should include reading each day with your child. Enclosed you will find resources and 
activities that you and your child can do together to prevent summer reading loss.   

It is our goal, in accordance with MN Statute 120B.12 and our Reading Well by Third Grade 
local literacy plan, that your child has a successful foundation in reading.  We wish to partner 
with you to ensure their success.   
 
Sincerely,  

 

Joann Karetov 
Lower School Principal 
651-395-5920 
 
 27



St. Croix Preparatory Academy 
Reading Well by Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

Updated June, 2020 
Page 7 of 11 

 
What Instructional Supports and Interventions Will Be Used? 

 
If a student is identified as not reading at or above grade level, and/or not meeting some or all 
benchmarks during the previous school year, they will automatically qualify for support.  

The foundations of reading will be met through the core curriculum. Teachers will foster 
students’ understanding and working knowledge of concepts of print, phonemic awareness, 
fluency, and other basic conventions.  In addition, a necessary and important component of an 
effective reading program is that it is structured to develop proficient readers with the 
capacity to think critically, read fluently, and comprehend texts across a range of text 
structures. 

Intervention programs assist students who are struggling with literacy.  Based on the results 
of screening and diagnostic assessments and teacher recommendation, students will receive 
a multi-tiered level of support that includes research-based interventions.   These interventions 
target skill deficits in the areas of phonemic awareness, phonics, fluency, vocabulary, and 
comprehension.   

Tiers of Literacy Support include: 

Tier 1:  Core Support   The core curriculum includes a phonics-based program based on Orton-
Gillingham called RIGGS (K-3), SRA Imagine IT! (K-3), Core Knowledge Sequence, and 
differentiated instruction and guided reading (K-3).     

All students receive core instruction in Tier 1.   Students who are at or above benchmark and 
are making sufficient academic growth will have their needs met through instruction in the 
core curriculum and guided reading.   Students performing below grade level will receive 
additional services through Tier 2 and /or Tier 3 support.   

Tier 2: Extra Support    Students who are below grade level are supported through small groups 
and/or individual instruction during What I Need (WIN) time.   Additional support is provided 
during a pre-determined and scheduled block.  To gauge the effectiveness of specific 
interventions, staff will monitor student progress using the STEP assessment, benchmark 
assessments on comprehension and fluency, and other formative assessments.  Once a student 
is boosted to grade level benchmarks, he/she will be placed on a “monitor” status and the 
amount of extra support in Tier 2 may stay the same, be reduced or terminated.   Teachers will 
continue to monitor progress to ensure that mastery is maintained.     

Instructional supports can include but are not limited to:  Research based interventions for the 
targeted skill, additional time to reinforce classroom skills with trained Educational Assistant 
and/or Reading Specialist, and/or grade retention. 

Tier 3:  Intense Support     Students who are significantly below grade level in reading may be 
evaluated and may qualify for an Individual Education Plan (IEP) to address their reading 
needs.  Recommendations for assessment go through an extensive child study process and 
review. 

 

 
28



St. Croix Preparatory Academy 
Reading Well by Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

Updated June, 2020 
Page 8 of 11 

 
What Supports Are in Place for English Learners? 

Our SCPA English Learners (EL) teacher offers content based EL instructional programs, which 
promote students’ English language proficiency and build academic content knowledge by 
integrating subject areas with language acquisition strategies.  English Learners acquire 
English through participation in age-appropriate instruction aligned to district content 
standards as well as English Language proficiency standards.  The primary objective of 
teaching language through content is to make the curriculum available to students at all levels 
of English proficiency.    

At the K-3 level, the EL teacher collaborates with the general education teacher to support the 
language acquisition strategies.   Linguistic, graphic, visual, kinesthetic, interactive, and 
emotional supports are provided to make content standards and SCPA 
curriculum/expectations accessible for English Learners at all levels of proficiency.   The EL 
teacher pulls students out during an established block of intervention time to support students 
in acquisition strategies that support the core curriculum. 

What Opportunities Do Teachers Have for Professional Development? 

Professional development is data-driven, ongoing, and inclusive of all teachers.  It is delivered 
in a variety of formats and aligned with school goals.   

For a five (5) day training during the summer of 2018, all elementary general and special 
education teachers received training in the RIGGS program, which is a comprehensive reading 
program based on Orton-Gillingham research, which emphasizes phonemic awareness, 
phonics, fluency, vocabulary, orthography, grammar, writing, and comprehension.  All new 
teachers will receive a training to support this program. 

There are 12 professional development days scheduled for the 2021-22 school year.  New 
teachers receive an additional 5 days of development each summer, in addition to ongoing 
one-hour monthly meetings.  SCPA utilizes formal and informal evaluations to identify teacher-
training needs.  In addition, teachers will meet for grade-level/specialty area Professional 
Learning Community (PLC) meetings for weekly one-hour meetings.  Much of this time will be 
devoted to reviewing data, setting goals, discussing instructional effectiveness, writing 
common assessments, and reviewing curriculum standards.   

Additionally, time will be given for grade level teams to meet at least once per month with the 
principal to review student progress-monitoring data, interventions being used, and make 
adjustments in addressing individual student needs. Weekly Child Study meetings are also 
available for teachers to bring an individual student for review by the principal, reading and 
math specialists, and special education team to address if additional interventions/ 
observations are available. 

Annually, teachers are given development regarding indicators of dyslexia, eye convergence 
insufficiency disorder, mental health, and other learning/medical disabilities that may impact 
students learning. 

 

 
29



St. Croix Preparatory Academy 
Reading Well by Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

Updated June, 2020 
Page 9 of 11 

 
How Are SCPA Students Currently Performing? 

1. Percentage of K-3 students at or above STEP benchmark goal. 
 

End of 2018-2019 

 
 

2. There is no end of 2019-2020 data due to the COVID-19 pandemic and mandatory school 
closures. 

End of 2020-2021 

 
 
 

30



St. Croix Preparatory Academy 
Reading Well by Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

Updated June, 2020 
Page 10 of 11 

 
3. Percentage of Grade 3 students at or above reading proficiency on MCA*. 

 

= 
 

4. Percentage of Grade 3 FRP and/or students of color who are at or above reading proficiency 
on MCA 2019. 

  The selected criteria resulted in counts too small to report. 
             

5. Percentage of Grade 3 Special Education students Meeting or Exceeding Reading Standards 
on MCA.  

 

*there are no 2020 scores to enter due to the COVID-19 school closures.  Above are the 
collective scores from 2017, 2018, and 2019 required by MDE. 

31



St. Croix Preparatory Academy 
Reading Well by Third Grade:  Local Literacy Plan 

Updated June, 2020 
Page 11 of 11 

 
Please Note: 

• Students were below normal benchmarks at the beginning of the 2020-21 school year due to the 
mandatory school closures from March – June, 2020.  Throughout the 2020-2021 school year, 
the students participated in hybrid, distance learning, and in-person learning models.  Because 
of the various learning models and school closures for over a year, scores may not appear as high 
as in previous years due to limited in-person instruction and interventions. 

• Although our internal STEP scores may have been lower, when compared to the statewide 
average, students in St. Croix Preparatory Academy Lower School consistently outperform the 
state averages in Reading on the MCAs (and the 2021 preliminary scores appear to have been 
similar to previous years). 
 

32



33



  2021-2022 Family Handbook Changes

The following are changes to the 2021-2022 Family Handbook:
 All 2020-2021 dates have been changed to 2021-2022.
 Page 3.  Welcome Letter updated to reflect looking forward to a more “normal” year.
 Page 4. 2021-2022 School Calendar WILL be included in approved handbook.
 Page 7.  Wanda Renner has been removed from Middle School contact info.
 Page 8.  New board meeting dates have been included.
 Page 9.  Board member information – once Jason has completed his training, we will 

update this document.  Wanda Renner has been removed from Advisory Board Member 
list.

 Page 14.  Enrollment year data has been updated for next year’s open enrollment 
period.

 Page 18.  Health note that we will continue to follow guidance related to Covid-19.
 Page 24.  Non-uniform days added.
 Page 25.  Spirit wear days added.
 Page 30.  Event dates established (Gala – November 13; Marathon – May 20; Golf – June 

15)
 Page 31.  Picture days updated.

34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



 

 

 

 

 

FY21 Audit:   

Proposal:   Clifton Larson Allen (CLA) has submitted an engagement letter for FY21 audit.  

Fee Services Price 

Change 
from 
Prior 
Year 

    
Audit Fee -Audit financial statements 

of each major fund. 
-Compile audit report and 
management discussion 
and analysis. 

$11,500 $550 
(5%) 

 
 

  

Tax Preparation Fee -Prepare Federal 990 Form 
and applicable state filings 

$1,775 $25 
(1.4%) 

 

Notes:   

-St. Croix Prep solicits audit proposals every 5 years.   Proposals were last solicited in 2018 and will be 
again in 2023.   

-CLA Fees for  audit and tax preparation have not increased since FY18 (3 years); therefore, the average 
increase over this 3-year period is 1.7 % for audit and .5% for tax preparation.  The administration 
deems both increases are deemed reasonable. 

-St. Croix Prep administration is very satisfied with CLA’s service and work product. 

 
Recommendation:  Engage Clifton Larson Allen to complete the audit and tax preparation for the year 
ended June 30, 2021. 

68



The Board of Directors of  
Friends of Education  
invite you to an evening dinner 
and boat cruise on beautiful  
Lake Minnetonka!

RSVP by August 6th to Ann Werdel,
friends@tcfbank.com or 763.473.0357

Thursday
August 19, 2021

Dinner boat cruise
5:30 pm – 7:30 pm

Cruise will board from the Wayzata Depot 
docks at 5:45 p.m. and leave promptly 
at 6:00 p.m. Map and parking details are 
provided on the next page.

69



 

P
P

P
P

 

P

WAYZATA BLVD

LAKE STREET

RICE ST

MILL ST
SUPERIOR BLVD

M
AN

IT
O

BA
 A

VE
M

IN
N

ET
O

N
KA

 A
VE

W
AL

KE
R 

AV
E

 B
RO

AD
W

AY
 A

VE
 SBA

RR
Y 

AV
E 

S

394

CE
N

TR
AL

 A
VE

 1
01

Lake Minnetonka

Wayzata

N

Wayzata Depot Docks
402 Lake Street E.
Wayzata, MN 55391

Free parking in city lots is available,  
but can be limited in the summer. 
Allow ample time and consider carpooling.

70

https://www.google.com/maps/place/402+Lake+St+E,+Wayzata,+MN+55391/@44.9698554,-93.5184798,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x52b34c913096baaf:0xb33fd2edeaf9ccae!8m2!3d44.9698554!4d-93.5162911
https://www.google.com/maps/place/402+Lake+St+E,+Wayzata,+MN+55391/@44.9698554,-93.5184798,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x52b34c913096baaf:0xb33fd2edeaf9ccae!8m2!3d44.9698554!4d-93.5162911

	Agenda
	1. Call to Order
	2. Open Forum
	3. Board Calendar
	SCPA Board Calendar 2021-2022

	4. Consent Agenda (Board Minutes, Executive Director Report, Annual Designations, IOWA, MSHSL Resolution)
	4.A. Board Minutes
	4.B. Executive Director Report
	Executive Director Board Report June 2021
	J. Gutierrez 2020-2021 Professional Development Plan

	MSHSL Resolution 1
	Education Identity and Access Management Board Resolution
	SCPA Board Minutes May 18 2021
	Friends of Education Portal Submissions
	SCPA FY22 Annual Designations

	5. Agenda
	5.A. Read Well By 3rd Grade Report -- Approval
	RW3 6.2021

	5.B. 2021-2022 e-Learning Days - approval of three (3) days
	eLearning Statute

	5.C. 2021-2022 Family Handbook Approval
	2021-2022 Family Handbook Changes
	2021-2022 Family Handbook Draft

	5.D. Approve Clifton Larson Allen as auditor for 2021-2022 school year
	FY21 audit- recommendation

	5.E. Potential Budget Amendment Due to Federal Funding Relief
	5.F. Friends of Education Networking Event
	2021 Friends of Education Boat Cruise Invitation

	5.G. Board Officer Elections Next Month

	6. Adjourn Meeting

